


FULL PACKET PAGE 2 of 39



4 

Agenda Item 4 

CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

FULL PACKET PAGE 3 of 39



FULL PACKET PAGE 4 of 39



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 4A - p1 

4A 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
DRAFT MINUTES 

SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
MEETING OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 

May 10, 2018 – 12:15 p.m. 
San Carlos Library Conference Room A 

Call To Order: 12:06PM 
1. Roll Call

SBWMA Staff Members Present: Joe La Mariana, Hilary Gans, John Mangini, Cyndi Urman, Jean Savaree 
2. Public Comment

Persons wishing to address the Board on matters NOT on the posted agenda may do so. Each speaker is limited to two minutes.
If there are more than five individuals wishing to speak during public comment, the Chairman will draw five speaker cards from
those submitted to speak during this time.  The balance of the Public Comment speakers will be called upon at the end of the
Board Meeting. If the item you are speaking on is not listed on the agenda, please be advised that the Board may briefly respond
to statements made or questions posed as allowed under The Brown Act (Government Code Section 54954.2).  The Board's
general policy is to refer items to staff for attention, or have a matter placed on a future Board agenda for a more comprehensive
action or report and formal public discussion and input at that time.

None

3. Executive Director’s Report

Executive Director La Marina welcomed John Mangini to the Committee.  

He discussed his meeting with Steven Gortler regarding the bond refunding.  He noted that recommends waiting 
until next spring to begin the process of refunding due to costs associated with the bond call date not being until 
September 2019.  The committee discussed the interest rate spread, and that due to rising interest rates 
refunding now may offset the costs of the call date.  Member Benton commented that going into a revenue bond 
with the commodity market collapse might be risky.  The committee directed staff to reach out to Josh 
Cooperman and Rich Morales to get their input and look into refunding the bonds sooner than next year. 

Agency Present Absent 

Bill Widmer X 
Michael Brownrigg X 
Carol Augustine X 
Jay Benton X 

FULL PACKET PAGE 5 of 39



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018                                                                                     AGENDA ITEM: 4A - p2 

 
 

Executive Director noted that the Agency attorney has a conflict with the committee’s request to staff to look into 
various fees that are charged to the agency, so she has reached out to a colleague in South City who is 
interested in the work. 
 
 

 
4. Approval of Minutes from the April 10, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting 
 
Motion/Second: Widmer/Brownrigg as amended 
Voice Vote: All in favor 

 
5. FY18/19 Draft Budget Preview 
 
Executive Director La Mariana noted that there has been no update in the China commodity market issue, and in 
fact China is currently not accepting anything from the US for one month.  Shoreway material continues to move, 
not to China, but at considerably lower market value. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana outlined the budget noting that it represents a $14 tip fee increase, and builds the 
Capital reserve to $1.4M. 
 
The Finance Committee asked staff to look at the reserve policy as soon as possible and more tightly define 
what each reserve can be used for.  Executive Director La Mariana noted that it was scheduled to be reviewed at 
the June Board meeting. 
 
Member Widmer noted that he would like to see projections in the packet for rate impacts.  Member Benton 
noted that a 13% tip fee increase doesn’t translate into a 13% rate increase for the residents.  The Finance 
Committee asked to see a City by City rate increase. 
 
Member Augustine noted that there were a number of small errors in the staff report and she would send those 
recommended changes to the Executive Director. 
 
The committee recommended that the staff report included why a 13% increase was being recommended and 
give the background, included a City by City estimated increase, and noted that a 13% tip fee increase does not 
equal a 13% rate increase. 
 
Member Brownrigg asked if there would be a CapEx discussion as part of the budget discussion. 
 
The committee discussed that the budget discussion should be an appropriation for the capital projects, and that 
it should be general terms and the detail would come at the time of project approval. 
 
Motion/Second: Widmer/Benton to recommend moving the budget with the amendments, corrections and 
competitive analysis discussed forward to the Board for approval. 
Voice Vote: All in favor 

 
6. Discussion on Capital Improvement Plan Recommendations  
 

FULL PACKET PAGE 6 of 39



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018                                                                                     AGENDA ITEM: 4A - p3 

The Finance Committee decided to reconvene on CapEx projects after the Zero Landfill Committee has a 
chance to meet. 

7. Finance Committee Member Comments

8. Adjourn 1:28PM

FULL PACKET PAGE 7 of 39



FULL PACKET PAGE 8 of 39



SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 4B - p1 

4B 

STAFF REPORT 
To:  SBWMA Finance Committee Members 
From:  Cyndi Urman, Board Secretary 
Date:  November 5, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting 
Subject: Approval of 2019 Finance Committee Meetings Calendar 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the SBWMA Finance Committee approve a 2019 Finance Committee regular meeting 
calendar. 
Summary 
The SBWMA Finance Committee is a standing committee of the SBWMA.  As such, the committee is required to 
follow Brown Act regulations, and have a posted schedule of regular meetings.  It is recommended that the 
SBWMA Finance Committee adopt a calendar with two regular meetings per year.  The first in January to discuss 
1) the final audited fiscal year financial statements, and 2) approve the next year’s annual investment policy.
Then meet for a second time in April to discuss 1) the final unaudited calendar year financial statements –
covering bond covenant ratios, and 2) review a draft of next year’s preliminary fiscal budget.

Staff recommends meeting on the second Thursday of January and April 2019. 

Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact associated with approving a regular calendar. 

Attachments: 
Attachment A - 2019 Finance Committee Meeting Calendar 

FULL PACKET PAGE 9 of 39



 
 
 

SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
2019 Finance Committee MEETING SCHEDULE 

 

Meetings of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority Finance Committee are held in the  
SBWMA Offices at 610 Elm Street Suite 202 San Carlos, CA on the second Thursday of January and April from 

12:00 pm to 2:00 pm 
 

Location: City of San Carlos Library, 2nd Floor, Conference Room A, 610 Elm St., San Carlos, CA  94070 
 

January 10 
 

2019 

April 11 
 

2019 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 

 
 

FULL PACKET PAGE 10 of 39



SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 5 – p1

5 

Agenda Item 5 
Reserve Policy Review 

For Finance Committee Review and Comment: 
Following is the Draft Staff Report Reviewing the Reserve Policy to be included in the 11/15/2018 
Board of Directors Meeting Packet 

FULL PACKET PAGE 11 of 39



FULL PACKET PAGE 12 of 39



SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 8A – p1 

8A 

STAFF REPORT 
To:  SBWMA Board Members 
From:  Joe LaMariana, Executive Director 

John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager 
Date:  November 15, 2018 Board of Director’s Meeting 
Subject: Resolution Approving the Revised Reserve Policy 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2018-xx attached hereto authorizing the 
following action: 
 Resolution approving the revised Reserve Policy as found in Attachment A. 

Summary 
The Cash Reserve Policy has been revised to establish a Capital Reserve to address the need to fund large-scale 
planned capital projects that carryover in the next several years and made other updates. This policy was last updated in 
2013.  This proposed change has been reviewed by the Finance Committee on November 5th, 2018, which recommends 
it for approval. 

Analysis 
Proposed New Policy Changes 
The proposed changes to the reserve policy include these major items as well as clean up language: 

• Added a new Capital Reserve. It will be based on the Agency’s five-year capital plan, and approved during the
budget approval process.

• For the Rate Stabilization and Emergency Reserves, set a range of funding from 7% to 10% vs. the prior
policy of “up to a maximum of 10%” that had no minimum.

• Defines operating expense for reserve funding purposes.
• Set the priority of funding for each reserve.
• Established how funds in each reserve could be spent.

While the FY18/19 budget presentation of the SBWMA reserves showed a Capital Reserve, it was not actually 
recognized in the reserve policy. Rather, the Undesignated Reserve had been renamed Capital Reserve but since it was 
the last or “plug” reserve to be funded, it showed a $2.5 million decrease in the FY18/19 budget just as the future 
planned capital project expenditures are expected to greatly increase. Thus a new Capital Reserve is proposed to 
address this problem and set up a distinct reserve as a mechanism to hold funds for future capital projects.   

In reviewing other city and JPA reserve policies, there is no clear consensus around establishing minimum reserve 
levels which we propose at 7%. There does appear to be commonality around having flexibility in establishing reserve 
levels which we have continued. It is not feasible to accurately establish, for instance, how much could be needed after 

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 5 - p1

FULL PACKET PAGE 13 of 39



 

SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 8A – p2 

 

an earthquake. There are too many variables to consider and a practical limit on how much we can fund from customer 
tip fees. We believe the approx. $4 to $5 million would provide the Agency with an appropriate funding  base to work 
with. In the event of a disaster, This proposed policy also allows the Board with the prerogative to designate all or a 
portion of the reserve balance towards immediate Agency emergency needs. Currently, the cumulative amount that 
would be available in such a situation is $10,790, 851.  
 
 
 
Impact of New Policy on SBWMA Reserve 
Table 1 below shows the final approved FY18/19 budget reserves. 
 
Table 1 

 
 
Hypothetical Scenario Using Proposed New Policy Language: 
Table 2 below shows a revised hypothetical FY18/19 reserve based on the proposed new Reserve Policy. Some 
assumptions have been made on the Capital Reserve since we did not present a 5 year capital schedule as it was not 
fleshed out enough. Also, the Rate Stabilization Reserve shows usage based on the decline in budgeted net commodity 
revenue caused by falling commodity prices since this is what the reserve was intended for. Notice that the total reserve 
balance does not change, just the balance in each separate reserve. 
 
Table 2 

UNCOMMITTED RESERVE:
RATE STABILIZATON (10% of expense) 4,033,671$         4,237,586$        4,756,987$           4,938,136$          181,150$            
EMERGENCY RESERVE (10% of expense) 4,033,671          4,237,586          4,756,987             4,895,300            138,314              
CAPITAL RESERVE (Undesignated) 6,828,704          4,438,135          3,437,843             957,415               (2,480,428)          

TOTAL UNCOMMITTED RESERVES 14,896,047$       12,913,307$       12,951,816$         10,790,851$         (2,160,965)$        
COMMITTED RESERVE 14,675,560$        
EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT (ANNUAL) 1,192,148$         1,723,744$        1,723,744$           1,397,514$          (326,231)$           

TOTAL RESERVES 16,088,195$       14,637,052$       14,675,560$         12,188,365$         (2,487,195)$        

ADOPTED FY18/19 BUDGET: RESERVE BALANCES 

 ACTUAL 
FY16/17 

 ADOPTED    
BUDGET             
FY17/18 

 MID-YEAR   
BUDGET       
FY17/18 

 ADOPTED 
BUDGET          
FY18/19 

 FY19 vs. FY18 
Mid-Year Budget 

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 5 - p2

FULL PACKET PAGE 14 of 39



SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 8A – p3 

Current Policy Description 
The current cash reserve policy encompasses three designated reserve accounts as follows – the purpose of each 
reserve does not change in the new policy: 

The Rate Stabilization Reserve is to set aside funds to minimize Transfer Station rate increases resulting from 
significant one-time revenue shortfalls (e.g., commodity price decreases, loss of tipping fee revenues due to short or 
long-term closure of the Shoreway facility, etc.).   

The Emergency Reserve is to address limited capital needs or significant one-time increases in Shoreway operating 
expenses as a result of damage caused by natural disasters, acts of war or terrorism, or other community emergency 
scenarios that are not covered by existing insurance policies. Notably, we currently do not have insurance coverage for 
damage from a seismic event, flood damage, and damage caused by an act of terrorism. Seismic insurance coverage is 
reviewed annually but has been declined by the Board due to the high cost (i.e., last quote was $450,000 per year with a 
10 percent deductible). We do maintain coverage for fire; natural gas explosion; a plane crashing into our property; and 
weather related damage from wind, lightening, or a severe storm. 

The Equipment Replacement Reserve is a sinking fund that is funded annually and then drawn down as monies are 
needed for major MRF equipment capital repairs, and eventually for partial replacement of the single stream processing 
equipment within the Material Recovery Facility (MRF). The Equipment Replacement Reserve covers the expected 
equipment replacement costs after the assumed 12-year depreciable life of the single stream processing equipment 
installed in 2011 plus any significant one-time equipment repair (wear parts) costs not covered in our Shoreway capital 
budget.  Per the Operations Agreement with SBR, the SBWMA is responsible for any repair expenses to stationary 
equipment when the repair for a single item exceeds $10,000.  

There is also a Capital Reserve that was formerly called the Undesignated Reserve which is essentially the “plug” 
reserve into which excess funds above the needs of the three designated reserves are put. This causes the Capital 
Reserve balance to fluctuate greatly and is not addressing the needs of funding capital projects. Therefore a distinct 
Capital Reserve is being added to the policy so that the reserve balance can hold funds for capital projects.  

Background 

UNCOMMITTED RESERVE:
RATE STABILIZATON RESERVE 4,033,671$         4,237,586$        2,655,153$           1,007,000$        (1,648,153)$        
EMERGENCY RESERVE 4,033,671          4,237,586          4,756,987             4,800,000          43,014$              
CAPITAL RESERVE 4,438,135          4,438,135          4,438,135             4,900,000          461,865$            
UNDESIGNATED 2,390,569          - 1,101,542             83,851              (1,017,691)$        

TOTAL UNCOMMITTED RESERVES 14,896,047$       12,913,307$       12,951,816$         10,790,851$      (2,160,965)$        
COMMITTED RESERVE 14,675,560$        
EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT (ANNUAL) 1,192,148$         1,723,744$        1,723,744$           1,397,514$        (326,231)$           

TOTAL RESERVES 16,088,195$       14,637,052$       14,675,560$         12,188,365$      (2,487,195)$        

EXAMPLE OF PROPOSED POLICY CHANGE
FY18/19 BUDGET: RESERVE BALANCES PROPOSED

 ACTUAL 
FY16/17 

 ADOPTED    
BUDGET             
FY17/18 

 MID-YEAR   
BUDGET       
FY17/18 

 ADOPTED 
BUDGET          
FY18/19 

 FY19 vs. FY18 
Mid-Year Budget 

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 5 - p3

FULL PACKET PAGE 15 of 39



SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 8A – p4 

The current cash reserve policy was reviewed by the Board of Directors in March 2014 and July 2015. No changes were 
made to the policy. 

The policy was last revised at the May 23, 2013 Board Meeting to reflect more clarity in defining the purpose and use of 
each reserve account. Key changes were made to the reserve policy as follows: 

• Maintained two previous reserve accounts (Rate Stabilization Reserve and Equipment Replacement Reserve)
and replaced the Operating Reserve with an Emergency Reserve Account.

• Changed the priority order of the accounts so the Rate Stabilization Reserve is first in priority followed by the
Emergency Reserve.

• Excluded certain operation expenses (i.e., Shoreway buyback payments to customers and door to door HHW
collection expenses) in the calculation of the fund levels for each account (i.e., up to maximum of 10% of
Operating Expenses) for the Rate Stabilization Reserve and the new Emergency Reserve.

Fiscal Impact 
There is no direct fiscal impact from maintaining the reserve policy other than its intended when needed and approved 
by the Board. A change in the reserve policy could have a one-time impact to tip fees at Shoreway if the reserves are 
increased or decreased.  

Attachments: 
Resolution 2018-xx 

1. Attachment A - Proposed Reserve Policy (2019)
2. Attachment B - Current Reserve Policy (2013)

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 5 - p4

FULL PACKET PAGE 16 of 39



SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 8A ATTACHMENT A - p1 

Proposed SBWMA Reserve Policy – 2019 

This policy replaces the previous policy approved by the Board in 2013. 

The purpose of the Reserve Policy is to establish reserve funds to meet known and estimated future obligations or 
unknown events causing economic or physical disruption. This policy establishes the level of fund balances and 
the process whereby funds may be spent. The source of all SBWMA funds are tip fee revenue and commodity 
revenue.  

After meeting all normal operating and debt service obligations of the SBWMA, the following reserve accounts 
shall be funded in the order of priority as shown below:  

1. Rate Stabilization Reserve shall range from a minimum of seven percent (7%) to a maximum of ten percent
(10%) of budgeted operating expenses. This fund is available to help minimize Transfer Station tip fee increases
resulting from significant one-time revenue shortfalls (e.g., commodity price decreases, loss of revenue due to
short closure of the Shoreway facility, etc.). Staff shall propose use of this fund when warranted which will be
approved by the Board during the budget approval process.

2. Emergency Reserve shall range from a minimum of seven percent (7%) to a maximum of ten percent (10%) of
budgeted operating expenses. This fund is established to make limited emergency capital repairs and reconstruct
the Shoreway facility buildings and infrastructure that may be damaged by natural disasters, acts of war or
terrorism, or other community emergency scenarios that are not covered by existing insurance policies.  Such
capital expenses would be those that could not be funded through an existing capital budget. This fund is also
available to cover significant one-time increases in operating expenditures associated with the above scenarios.

Use of this fund is approved by the Finance Committee on an emergency basis and subsequently approved by 
the Board at the next Board meeting. 

3. Equipment Replacement Reserve is established to replace single stream MRF processing equipment based
on a 12 year replacement schedule as recommended by the manufacturer. This reserve would also be available
to fund any significant one-time unanticipated equipment repair (wear parts) costs not covered in our Shoreway
capital budget. Use of this fund is for the actual replacement of existing MRF processing equipment above the
$10,000 maximum responsibility of SBR for any single item of equipment repair.

4. Capital Project Reserve is intended to fund future capital projects that need to be funded over a term longer
than one year and cannot be absorbed by one budget period. The proposed balance and use of this fund shall be
approved by the Board as a part of the annual budget process based on a five-year capital project plan.

5. Undesignated Reserve shall hold any excess funds after the above reserves are fully funded.

All reserve fund levels will be approved each year as part of the adoption of the fiscal year budget. During the 
budget process, projected net cash flow, reserve balances, and debt covenant requirements are considered when 
budgeting Shoreway tip fees which are the main source of reserve funds. 

Operating expense for the purpose of funding the first two reserves are defined as all cash expenses including 
Shoreway operations, SBWMA program, bond interest and franchise fees. Excluded are non-cash expenses such 
as depreciation. Also excluded are any expenses that are 100% offset by revenue from the same source such as 
the now defunct HHW program.   

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 5 ATTACHMENT A - p1

FULL PACKET PAGE 17 of 39



SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 8A ATTACHMENT A - p2 

It is important to note that the first two funds are basically static funds with minimal annual changes. Going 
forward, these balances will not change if they stay within the established range. Ten percent is not added each 
year – this is the fixed limit. 

The third and fourth funds are cumulative funds as cash is added each year to reach the total amount needed and 
depleted by the approved and designated expenditures. 

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 5 ATTACHMENT A - p2

FULL PACKET PAGE 18 of 39



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD MEETING 11/15/2018 AGENDA ITEM 8A ATTACHMENT B - p1 

April 2013 Reserve Policy 
After meeting all debt service obligations of the SBWMA the following reserve accounts 
shall be funded in the following order of priority: 

1. Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund of up to a maximum of ten (10%) percent of
budgeted operating expenses, exclusive of pass through expenses that are 100% offset by
revenue from the same sources (e.g., Shoreway buyback payments to customers and door to
door HHW collection expenses). These funds are available to help minimize Transfer Station
rate increases resulting from significant one-time revenue shortfalls (e.g., commodity price
decreases, loss of tipping fee revenues due to short or long-term closure of the Shoreway
facility, etc.).

2. Emergency Reserve Fund of up to a maximum of ten (10%) percent of budgeted operating
expenses, exclusive of pass through expenses that are 100% offset by revenue from the same
sources (e.g., Shoreway buyback payments to customers and door to door HHW collection
expenses).  This fund is available to make limited capital repairs and reconstruct the Shoreway
facility buildings and infrastructure that may be damaged by natural disasters, acts of war or
terrorism, or other community emergency scenarios that are not covered by existing insurance
policies.  Such capital expenses would be those that could not be funded through an existing
capital budget or those not reimbursable through insurance coverage. This fund is also available
to cover significant one-time increases in operating expenditures associated with above said
scenarios.

3. Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund for a 12 year cost replacement schedule, inclusive of
an annual CPI adjustment, for the Shoreway MRF single stream processing equipment. This
reserve would also be available to fund any significant one-time unanticipated equipment
repair (wear parts) costs not covered in our Shoreway capital budget.

Fund levels will be approved each year as part of the adoption of the fiscal year budget. During 
the budget process, projected net cash flow, reserve balances, and debt covenants are 
considered when budgeting Shoreway tip fees. Excess cash flow is minimized by adjusting tip 
fees to cover operating expenses and fund reserve balances. 

It is important to note that the first two funds are basically static funds with minimal annual 
changes which are based on fluctuations in the annual operating budget. Ten per cent is not 
added each year – this is the fixed limit. The third fund is a cumulative fund as cash is added 
each year to reach the total amount needed at the end of the twelve year replacement period. 

If after all reserve levels are funded up to their maximum levels and tip fees are budgeted, 
minimal surplus cash may be available. The adopted budget will include specific guidance on 
the use of such surplus cash with a goal of utilizing the monies for one-time expenditures, non-
recurring costs, or funding an undesignated reserve fund. 

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 01/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 5 ATTACHMENT B - p1

FULL PACKET PAGE 19 of 39



FULL PACKET PAGE 20 of 39



SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 6 – p1

6 

Agenda Item 6 
Accounting Services RFQ 

No Staff Report: 
Discussion Item Only at the 11/05/2018 Finance Committee Meeting 

FULL PACKET PAGE 21 of 39



FULL PACKET PAGE 22 of 39



SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 7 – p1

7 

Agenda Item 7 
2019 Proposed Tip Fee Review 

For Finance Committee Review and Comment: 
Following is the Draft Staff Report on the 2019 Proposed Tip Fees to be included in the 11/15/2018 
Board of Directors Meeting Packet 

FULL PACKET PAGE 23 of 39



FULL PACKET PAGE 24 of 39



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 8C - p1

8C 

STAFF REPORT 
To:  SBWMA Board Members 
From:  Joe La Mariana, Executive Director 

John Mangini, Sr. Finance Manager 
Date:  November 15, 2018 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject: Resolution Approving Tipping Fee Increases Effective 1/1/19 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2018-xx attached hereto 
authorizing the following actions:    

Resolution approving the recommended Tip Fees effective January 1st, 2019: 

*CY = Cubic Yard

Summary 
As in prior years, the proposed tip fees effective on January 1 of the next year are reviewed and approved by the 
Board in November. The proposed tip fees above are the same as what was used in the FY18/19 budget 
assumptions and in the Total Collection Rate Recommendation as part of the SBWMA Review of the Recology 
2019 Compensation Application (Table 8) in September 2018. The larger than normal tip fee increases are 
primarily a result of the decrease in commodity prices due to the change in China’s quality standards. These tip 
fee increases should allow the SBWMA to meet the bond covenant requirements in 2019. The biggest risk 
remains commodity revenue and pricing. 

Analysis 
When evaluating potential adjustments to the Shoreway facility tipping fees, staff prepares and reviews the 
following:  

• Complete financial projections for calendar years 2018 and 2019 to reflect current trends in inbound
volume from franchise and non-franchise customers, commodity revenue, and operating expenses.

Material Category Unit of 
Measure Current rate Proposed rate Difference 

($)
Difference 

(%)
Franchise Solid Waste / ton  $107  $121 +$14 13.1%
Franchise Organics / ton $112 $126 +$14 12.5%
Franchise Food Waste / ton $131 $141 +$10 7.6%
Public Solid Waste / ton $42 $44 +$2 4.8%
Public Green Waste / cy $33 $35 +$2 6.1%
Public C&D / cy $42 $44 +$2 4.8%
Public Weighed Dirt / ton $98 $103 +$5 5.1%

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 7 - p1

FULL PACKET PAGE 25 of 39



SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 8C - p2 

• Verify that the SBWMA is in compliance with bond debt covenant requirements (i.e., break even test 1.0
and debt coverage ratio of 1.4).

SBWMA Financial Projections for Calendar Year 2018 and 2019 
Financial projections for calendar year 2018 and 2019 are shown in Table 1 below. The 2019 projection for 
franchise and public revenue is based on the recommended tipping fees for 2019.   

Table 1 

The changes in financial projections from 2018 to 2019 are explained: 
• Inbound volume is largely flat (see Attach. A, Table 1, Graph 1 & 2).

o Franchise tons increase 0.5%
o Public solid waste volume increases 7.4% offset by 13.4% lower green waste

• The proposed tip fee increases have the largest impact on the revenue increase (see Table 4 below and
Attach. A, Table 2).

• The full impact of the lower commodity prices from the impact of China’s higher standards are reflected in
the lower commodity revenue. Estimated average prices of $111/ ton in 2018 decrease to $98 / ton in
2019 (see Attach. A Graph 3).

 Calendar Year 
2018 

 Calendar Year 
2019  Change $  Change % 

$32,360 $36,685 4,325           13.4%
$11,765 $12,508 744 6.3%
$5,722 $5,107 (615)             -10.7%

Other Revenue $1 $1 - 0.0%
$49,847 $54,301 4,454           8.9%

$20,447 $21,134 687 3.4%
$18,931 $19,659 728 3.8%
$3,764 $3,617 (147)             -3.9%
$2,101 $2,343 242 11.5%
$1,218 $1,317 99 8.2%

$46,461 $48,070 1,609 3.5%-    
$3,386 $6,231 2,845           84.0%

$2,306 $2,073 (233)             -10.1%

$1,080 $4,158 $3,078 285%
BOND COVENANTS

Break Even (=> 1.0) 0.99 1.05 
Debt Coverage (> 1.4) 1.4 2.2 

Net Interest Expense

Net Income 

SBWMA Program Expense
Franchise Fee to City of San Carlos

Miscellaneous
Total Operating Expense

Operating Income

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expense
SBR Operating Expense

Disposal & Processing Expense

Operating Revenue

Tip Fee Revenue - Franchise
Tip Fee Revenue - Public

SBWMA - Financial Projection ($000)

Net Commodity Revenue

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 7 - p2

FULL PACKET PAGE 26 of 39



SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 8C - p3 

• SBR Operating Cost increase is based on the approved 2019 fees in the SBR 2019 Compensation
Application (see Attach. A Table 4).

• Disposal & Processing Expense is based on contractual rates to each site (see Attach. A Table 5).
• Higher franchise fees to the City of San Carlos are due to higher tip fee revenue. The rate remains the

same at 5% of tip fee revenue.
The estimated profit margin of the proposed 2019 tip fees can be found in Attachment A, Table 6. 
The projected net income for calendar year 2018 results in barely meeting the minimum bond covenant break-
even ratio at 1.00 and debt coverage ratio of 1.4. Depending on final 2018 financial results, a non-cash revenue 
transfer of up to approximately $500,000 may be needed to achieve the bond covenant requirements. This is 
primarily due to the lower commodity revenue from lower prices.  
The projected results for 2019 are somewhat better than the projected 2018 results and the bond covenant 
requirements are expected to be achieved. The projected break-even ratio is 1.05 and the debt coverage ratio is 
2.2. The better results in 2019 are due to the proposed tip fee increases on January 1, 2019 and the full year 
impact of the July 1, 2018 tip fee increases for franchise food waste and public green waste and C&D. Commodity 
revenue remains the biggest risk. 
Attachment A provides a series of tables with back-up detail on operating volume, revenue and expense 
information used in the 2018 and 2019 financial projections. 
Table 2 below shows the 2019 projected volume, tip fees and revenue generated for each rate category. 
Franchise customers make up 75% of tip fee revenue while public customers make up 25% of total tip fee 
revenue. 

Table 2  

FRANCHISE Yards Tons Tip Fee Revenue % of Total
Solid Waste 185,550 121.00$         22,451,495$         45.6%
Organics 82,072 126.00$         10,341,124$         21.0%
Commercial Food Waste 24,761 141.00$         3,491,363$           7.1%
Dirt, Inert 2,092 108.00$         225,966$              0.5%
Other 1,540 various 174,947$              0.4%
Total Franchise 296,016 36,684,895$         74.6%

SELF-HAUL 
Solid Waste 61,723 44.00$           2,715,804$           5.5%
Green Waste 36,903 35.00$           1,291,603$           2.6%
C&D 109,039 44.00$           4,797,732$           9.8%
Public Dirt 9,981 103.00$         1,028,002$           2.1%
Public Other 215,149$              0.4%
Non-SBWMA Solid Waste 3,766 127.00$         478,246$              1.0%
Non-SBWMA Organics 406 128.00$         51,925$                0.1%
Non-SBWMA Food 5,565 141.00$         784,629$              1.6%
Non-SBWMA C&D 7,827 120.00$         939,293$              1.9%
Non-SBWMA Inerts 1,610 128.00$         206,037$              0.4%

Total Public 207,665 29,154 12,508,421$         25.4%

TOTAL 207,665 325,170 49,193,316$         100.0%

2019 TIP FEE REVENUE PROJECTION - DETAIL

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 7 - p3

FULL PACKET PAGE 27 of 39



SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 8C - p4 

Background 
The financial projections are based on actual volume and commodity prices through August 2018. Overall, we are 
forecasting slightly higher franchise tonnage of 0.5% and slightly lower public volume in 2019 vs. 2018.  

Table 4 below shows the historical tipping fees at the Shoreway facility and the proposed tipping fee on January 
1st 2019. The proposed 2019 tip fees are the same as used in the FY18/19 budget. 

Table 4 

Fiscal Impact 
The recommended tipping fee adjustments will keep the SBWMA in compliance with the bond covenant 
requirements for 2019. 

 Attachments: 
Resolution 2018-xx 

Attachment A - Back-up Financial and Operational Data 

Effective Dates: Units 1/1/2014 1/1/2015 * 1/1/2016 7/1/2016 1/1/2017 1/1/2018 7/1/2018 1/1/2019
Category Proposed
Franchised Solid Waste / ton $92 $92 $94 $94 $104 $107 $107 $121
Franchised Organics     / ton $94 $94 $96 $96 $106 $112 $112 $126
Franchised Food Waste / ton $107 $107 $107 $107 $118 $118 $131 $141
Public weighed dirt        / ton $81 $81 $83 $90 $95 $98 $98 $103
Public Solid Waste         / cu yd $35 $35 $36 $38 $41 $42 $42 $44
Public C&D / cu yd $32 $32 $33 $35 $38 $40 $42 $44
Public Green Waste      / cu yd $24 $24 $25 $27 $29 $31 $33 $31

Tip Fees

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 7 - p4

FULL PACKET PAGE 28 of 39



SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 8C - p5 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-xx 
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE 

 MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
APPROVING SHOREWAY FACILITY TIPPING FEE ADJUSTMENTS 

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2019 

WHEREAS, staff has submitted a report to the Board, dated November 15, 2018 recommending adjustments to the 
tipping fees charged at the Shoreway Environmental Center; and  

WHEREAS, these proposed tip fees are the same as used in the FY18/19 budget and in Table 8 showing the 
recommended Total Collection Rate Adjustment by agency in the Recology 2019 Compensation Application; and 

WHEREAS, the SBWMA Board has reviewed the suggested changes to the Tipping Fees, and recommends the 
following adjustments as of January 1, 2019: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the SBWMA Board approves the adjustments to the Tipping Fees as 
recommended above. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, County of 
San Mateo, State of California on the  this 15th day of November, 2018, by the following vote: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2018-xx was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on November 15, 2018. 

Material Category Unit of 
Measure Current rate Proposed rate Difference 

($)
Difference 

(%)
Franchise Solid Waste / ton  $107  $121 +$14 13.1%
Franchise Organics / ton $112 $126 +$14 12.5%
Franchise Food Waste / ton $131 $141 +$10 7.6%
Public Solid Waste / ton $42 $44 +$2 4.8%
Public Green Waste / cy $33 $35 +$2 6.1%
Public C&D / cy $42 $44 +$2 4.8%
Public Weighed Dirt / ton $98 $103 +$5 5.1%

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Atherton Menlo Park 
Belmont Redwood City 
Burlingame San Carlos 
East Palo Alto San Mateo 
Foster City County of San Mateo 
Hillsborough West Bay Sanitary Dist. 

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 7 - p5

FULL PACKET PAGE 29 of 39



SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 8C - p6 

ATTEST: Charlie Bronitsky, Chairperson of SBWMA 

_________________________________ 
Cyndi Urman, Board Secretary 

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 7 - p6

FULL PACKET PAGE 30 of 39



Attachment A 

Back-Up Financial and Operational Data. All data for calendar years, not fiscal years. 

Table 1 – Inbound volume to the Transfer Station for 2017, 2018 and 2019 

Table 2 – Tip Fee Revenue summary: franchise and public. 

TRANSFER STATION VOLUME Unit 2017 2018 * 2019 * 18 vs 17 19 vs 18
Franchise
SBWMA Solid Waste tons 183,557 184,053 185,550 0.3% 0.8%
SBWMA Green Waste tons 96,169 82,072 82,072 -14.7% 0.0%
SBWMA Food Waste tons 12,659 24,761 24,761 95.6% 0.0%
SBWMA Dirt, Inert tons 2,408 2,845 2,845 18.2% 0.0%
SBWMA Wood tons 112 170 170 51.5% 0.0%
SBWMA Other, BI tons 761 618 618 -18.8% 0.0%
sub-total Franchise 295,665 294,519 296,016 -0.4% 0.5%
Non-SBWMA SW tons 2,944 3,766 3,766 27.9% 0.0%
Non-SBWMA Green Waste tons 173 406 406 135.0% 0.0%
Non-SBWMA FOOD tons 6,304 5,565 5,565 -11.7% 0.0%
Non-SBWMA C&D tons 5,375 7,827 7,827 45.6% 0.0%
Non-SBWMA ORGANIC tons 2,009 1,610 1,610 -19.9% 0.0%
Public Dirt, Inerts tons 8,554 9,981 9,981 16.7% 0.0%

Total Tons 321,129 323,673 325,170 0.8% 0.5%
Public
Public Solid Waste cu yards 53,512 57,471 61,723 7.4% 7.4%
Public Green Waste cu yards 49,264 42,638 36,903 -13.4% -13.4%
Public C&D cu yards 112,445 110,729 109,039 -1.5% -1.5%# /0 # /0
Total Yards 215,220 210,837 207,665 -2.0% -1.5%

* - estimate

TIP FEE REVENUE SUMMARY 2018 2019 19 vs 18 %
Franchise

Tons 294,519 296,016 1,497 0.5%
Wtd Avg.Tip Fee 109.87$               123.93$               14.06$              12.8%
Franchise Revenue 32,359,519$        36,684,895$        4,325,376$       13.4%

Public
Tons 29,154 29,154 0 0.0%
Wtd Avg.Tip Fee 110.74$               119.65$               8.90$                8.0%
Sub Total 3,228,572$          3,488,133$          259,561$          8.0%

Cubic Yards 210,837 207,665 -3,172 -1.5%
Wtd Avg.Tip Fee 40.49$                 43.44$                 2.95$                7.3%
Sub Total 8,536,280$          9,020,288$          484,008$          5.7%

Public Revenue 11,764,852$   12,508,421$   743,569$      6.3%

Total Tip Fee Revenue 44,124,371$        49,193,316$        5,068,945$       11.5%

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 8C ATTACHMENT A - p1

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 7 ATTACHMENT A - p1

FULL PACKET PAGE 31 of 39



Graph 1 - Franchise tons trend 

Graph 2 – Public volume trend 

Table 3 – Commodity Revenue summary 

FRANCHISE TONS

PUBLIC YARDS

COMMODITY REVENUE 2017 2018 2019 19 vs 18 %
Tons 61,847           62,336           62,336           0 0.0%
Wtd Avg. Price 147.20$         111.13$         98.53$           (12.60)$     -11.3%

Gross Revenue 9,104,112$    6,927,331$    6,141,978$    (785,353)$ -11.3%
Revenue Share w/ SBR 680,262 (342,981) (146,642) 196,338 -57.2%
Buyback Payments (825,258) (862,377) (888,248) (25,871) 3.0%

Net Commodity Revenue 8,959,116$    5,721,974$    5,107,088$    (614,886)$ -10.7%

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 8C ATTACHMENT A - p2

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 7 ATTACHMENT A - p2

FULL PACKET PAGE 32 of 39



Graph 3 – Commodity price graph 

Table 4 – SBR operating expense detail. 

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 8C ATTACHMENT A - p3

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 7 ATTACHMENT A - p3

FULL PACKET PAGE 33 of 39



Table 5 – Disposal and Processing expense detail. 

Table 6 – Transfer Station 2019 proposed tip fees vs cost (profit margin) estimate. 

SBR OPERATING & TRANSPORTATION EXPENSE
a. Summary 2018 2019 19 vs 18 %

MRF 7,073,877$          7,272,412$          198,535$          2.8%
Transfer Station 5,335,796            5,510,928            175,132            3.3%
Transportation 8,037,285            8,350,234            312,949            3.9%

TOTAL SBR EXPENSE 20,446,958$        21,133,574$        686,616$          3.4%

b. Detail 2018 2019 19 vs 18 %
MRF

Tons 73,219                 73,219                 - 0.0%
Rate 96.61$                 99.32$                 2.71$                2.8%
Expense 7,073,877$          7,272,412$          4,754,510$       2.8%

Transfer Station
Tons 394,874               397,557               2,683                0.7%
Rate 13.51$                 13.86$                 0.35$                2.6%
Expense 5,335,796$          5,510,928$          175,132$          3.3%

Transportation
Tons 394,874               397,557               2,683                0.7%
Rate 20.35$                 21.00$                 0.65$                3.2%
Expense 8,037,285$          8,350,234$          312,949$          3.9%

TOTAL SBR EXPENSE 20,446,958$        21,133,574$        686,616$          3.4%

DISPOSAL & PROCESSING EXPENSE
2018 2019 19 vs 18 %

Summary
TS Tons 394,874               397,557               2,683 0.7%
Wtd Avg.Rate 47.94$                 49.45$                 1.51$                3.1%

Disposal Expense 18,930,760$        19,659,113$        728,354$          3.8%

Detail - 2019 Tons Price Expense
Ox Mountain MSW 226,837               42.57$                 9,656,292$       
Organics 88,383                 53.81$                 4,755,499$       
Food 30,326                 54.25$                 1,645,339$       
C&D 52,011                 70.33$                 3,657,960$       
Miscellaneous (haz wste, etc) 407,294$          
Paid by SBR (10,883)                42.57$                 (463,271)$         

TOTAL - 2019 386,674               19,659,113$     

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 8C ATTACHMENT A - p4

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 7 ATTACHMENT A - p4

FULL PACKET PAGE 34 of 39



unit 2019 Cost  2019 Tip Fee  Net Income 
FRANCHISE
Solid Waste / ton 96.48$                 121.00$              24.52$                 
Residential Organics / ton 116.99$               126.00$              9.01$  
Commercial Food Waste / ton 129.63$               141.00$              11.37$                 

SELF-HAUL 
Solid Waste   / cu yd 41.64$                 44.00$                2.36$  
Green Waste / cu yd 26.35$                 35.00$                8.65$  
C&D      / cu yd 40.71$                 44.00$                3.29$  
   estimated

Transfer Station Tip Fee Margin (Rate vs Cost)

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 11/15/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 8C ATTACHMENT A - p5

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 7 ATTACHMENT A - p5

FULL PACKET PAGE 35 of 39



FULL PACKET PAGE 36 of 39



SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 8 – p1

8 

Agenda Item 8 
Bond Refinance Update 

No Staff Report: 
Discussion Item Only at the 11/05/2018 Finance Committee Meeting 

FULL PACKET PAGE 37 of 39



FULL PACKET PAGE 38 of 39



SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 11/05/2018 AGENDA ITEM: 9 – p1

9 

Agenda Item 9 
    Upcoming CIP Projects – Plan of Finance Review 

   Glass Load Out Project and Optional Shredding 
   Organics to Energy Projects (Phase 1&2) 

    MRF Enhancements 

No Staff Report: 
Discussion Item Only at the 11/05/2018 Finance Committee Meeting 

FULL PACKET PAGE 39 of 39


	AGENDA Finance Committee 110518
	4_A_Approval of Minutes from the May 10, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting
	4_B_Approval of 2019 Finance Committee Meetings Calendar
	5_Reserve Policy Review
	6_Accounting Services RFQ
	7_2019 Proposed Tip Fee Review
	8_Bond Refinance Update
	9_Upcoming CIP Projects – Plan of Finance Review



